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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of
Kesar Multimodal Logistics Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Kesar
Multimodal Logistics Limited ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Inceme), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended and notes to the Ind AS financial statements
including a summary of the significant accounting policles and other explanatory
mformation (herein after referred to as "Ind AS Financial Statements”).

In our opinton and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given ta us, except for the possible effects of the matters mentioned in the Basis
for Qualifred Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statements give the Information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted In India including the Indian Accounting
Standards ("Ind AS"), of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023,
Its loss {including other comprehensive income), its changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As stated In Note 41{a) of the Ind AS financial statements, the Company has
incurred substantial losses during current as well as previous financial years and
the net worth ef the Company has completely eroded. Further, the revenues and
turnovers of the Company have not improved or achieved as per management's
expectations. In view of the above, there may be an impairment in the carrying
value of Property Plant and Equipment situated at Composite Logistics Hub at
Pawarkhada, Madhya Pradesh. Howewer, the extent of impairment s not
ascertained currently and no provision has been made thereto as required by
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 36) ‘Impairment of Assets’,




We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion,

MATERTAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 41 of the Ind AS financial statements with regard to
Preparation of the financial statements ©n going concern basis. The Company has
incurred losses during the current and previous financial years and defaulted in
repayment of barrowings to the lenders. In view of the defaults by the Company, the
lenders of the Company have filed 3 petition against the Company and the Guarantor
(i.e. Kesar Terminals & Infrastructure Ltd (KTIL)) with the National Company Law
Board (NCLT), Mumbai under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) 2016.
Pursuant to the sanction of One Time Settlement (OTS) proposal by lenders and the
subsequent filing of form 12A by RP for the withdrawal of the CIRP in case of the
company, NCLT vide its Order dated 19.09.2022 withdrawn the CIRP proceedings.
The company has made part payments towards OTS and there are overdues as on
31.03.2023. The company is seeking more fime from lenders for repayment of OTS
dues. The lenders of company have also filed an Original Application before the Debt
Recovery Tribunal (DRT) - Jabalpur against the Company and its holding company
I.e. KTIL. As stated In the note, the Company will inform DRT about the same In their
next hearing with the request to keep the proceedings on hold till the completion of
OTS. Further, the holding company has during the year decided to divest upto 100
% equity and/or preference stake in KMLL and the holding company took the
Shareholders approval to enable the proposed divestment. Subsequently the holding
company received final offer for sale of equity and/or preference stake of the
company from the prospective buyer which is subject to the execution of definitive
agreements in agreed form, the fulfilment of conditions precedent and necessary
approvails from the regulatory/statutory authorities. The above factors, along with
other matters as set forth in the aforesaid note, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, the financial
statements have been prepared on ‘going concern’ basis based on management's
expectation of improvement In the Company's revenues and business of the Company
in future and successful fulfilment of OTS obligations and in view of the proposed
divestment of the equity and preference shares of the Company by the holding
company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our
report.




EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

We draw attention to Note 42 of the Ind AS financial statements which states that
interest on Bank term loans have been provided upto 30.06.2022 on the
outstanding cumulative term loan balances. Pursuant the sanction of OTS proposal
by the lenders, interest on bank term loans have been provided on the OTS amount
based on the OTS sanctioned terms w.e.f. 01.07.2022, The company has made part
payments towards OTS and there are overdues as on 31.03.2023. The company Is
seeking more time from lenders for repayment of OTS dues, As stated in the note,
the effect of the OTS waiver on borrowings and Interest outstanding will be
accounted as and when the repayment obligations under OTS are fulfilled by the
company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

OTHER INFORMATION

The Company'’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors Report including
Annexures to the Directors Report but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or
our knowledge cbtained in the audit, or atherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard,

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of
these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenarnce of
adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,




In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are aiso responsible for overseeing the company's financial
reporting process,

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
=iTor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance Is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit canducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when It exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements,

As part of an audit in accardance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsn:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omisslons, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

« Cvaluate the appropriateness of daccounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basls of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.




* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the undertying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, damong other
matters, the planned Scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and ather matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear an our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemnance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, we describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless |aw or regulation precludes public
disctosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in Our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the pubtic
Interest benefits of such communication,

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

: i

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give
in the "Annexure A" 3 statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

4) We have SOUght and obtained, except for the possitle effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit;

b) Inour apinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

€) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive Income), the Statement af Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5, 85 amended except as
otherwise stated in the Basis of Opinion Para of this report with regard the
impairment of fixed assets {(ind AS 36 - Impalrment of Assels);




e)

f)

g)

h)

iv.

L

iii.

The matters described under the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, Material

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
i disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company and the Operating effectiveness of such
controis, refer to our Separate Report in “Annexure B":

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of other pending litigations on its
financial position in its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 28, 41, and
42 to the financial statements, However, as stated in the said notes, the
Impact of the above on financial statements of the Company cannot be
ascertalned at present.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Pratection Fund by the Company.

(@) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or Invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
af funds) by the company to or in any ather person(s) or entity(ies),
Including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries"”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:




(b) The management has répresented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the company from any
PErson(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or pravide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sup-
clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year under audit,

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for
the Company only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

For JMT & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration MNo.104167W
Mﬁg"
-

Trilok Suthar

Partner

Membership No.: 107842
UDIN: 23|03 ¥4 2 BuaZmeH

Place: Mumbaij
Date: May 29, 2023



ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to
the members of Kesar Multimodal Logistics Limited on the Ind AS financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

{i} (a) (A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
icluding quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Egquipment,

(B) The Company has maintalned proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Property, Plant
and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
interval and no material discrepancies were naticed on verification between the
physical assets and the book records. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification of Property, Plant and Equipment is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets,

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of all
the iImmovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
ws3ee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed In the financial statements are held in the name of the company,

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revaiued s Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year.,

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
proceedings initiated aor are pending against the company for holding any
Benami property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and
Rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The nature of operations of the company does not require It to hold inventories.
Hence, paragraph 3 (ii) (a) of the order is, therefore, not appiicable to the
company for the year under audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets during any point of time of the year. Hence, clause 3(i) (b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company during the year.

(ili)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
made any investments in, or provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Hence,
clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company for the year,

(iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
glven any loan ar guarantee ar pravided any security nor made any Investments as
specified In Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Paragraph 3(Iv) of the Order is,
therefore, not applicable to the Company for the year under audit,

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be




(vi)

{vil)

{wili}

(ix)

deposits during the vear and hence the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder are not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government
has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

{a) According to the Information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, the Company has been generally regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state Insurance, Income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of exdse, value added tax, cess and any other applicable
statutory dues to the a@ppropriate authorities, According to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no material undisputed statutory dues
outstanding as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the Information and explanations given to us, there are no
matertal statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not
ceen deposited on account of any dispute as at March 31, 2023,

According to the Information and explanations glven to us, there are no such
transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961),

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of tha
Company examined by us, the Company has defaulted in repayment of term loans
details of which are as under:

{Faturem |Name  of [ Amount | Wheth ( No.  of | Remarks, |
| borrowing, | lender | not paid | er days | if any F
| including | | on due 'orinci | delav or | |
debt | | date ‘palor |unpaid | !
securities ' intere | i
| st
Term loans | Banks under | Rs. 16,737.93 | Both Around 5 | Refer note
consortium year and 9 | 41 and 42
(Lead Bank: months
Bank of |
Baroda | {July, 2017

(Erstwhiie and
Dena Bank)) r onwards)

As informed to us, the banks have recalled the entire borrowings for recovery during
earlier years, The company has arrived at the OTS with lenders for repayment of
Its overdue borrowings and interest thereon, The company has made part payments
towards OTS and there are overdues as on 31.03.2023. The company Is seeking
more time from lenders for repayment of OTS dues. Also refer Note no. 41 and 42
of the financial statements.




(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
declared as wilful defaulter by any banks or financial institution or other lender,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did
not raise any term loans during the year. Hence, clause 3 (ix) (c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company for the year.

{(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long term
puUiposes by the Company during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsitiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or assorciate caompanles.

(x) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, the Company did not ralse any money by way
of initial public offer ar further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year, Hence, the provisions of paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order are rot
applicable,

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures during the year.,

(x1)  (a) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the yvear,

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors during the year in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower
complaints have been received by the Company during the VEGT,

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence the provisions of paragraph 3(xil} of the
Order are not applicable,

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where
aoplicable and the details have been disclosed in the finandal statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards,




(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has internal audit system commensurate with size and nature of
its business,

(b) The reparts of the internal auditors for the period under audit were considered
by us while framing our opinion on the financial statements of the Company,

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
Zntered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
Mem during the YeEar,

(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the
year. Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is, therefore, not applicable to the Company,

(€} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India,

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does
not have any CiCas a part of the Group,

(xvil) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
Incurred cash losses of Rs5.1068.97 lakhs in the current financial year and of
Rs.2515.49 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year,

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
Payment of financlal liabllities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
further based on our examination of the records of the Company and based on the
reasons stated in Basis of Qualified Opinion section of our report, in our opinion,
there is a material uncertainty existing as on the date of the audit report that the

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.




(xx)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of section
135 of the Companies Act in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility are not
applicable to the Company. Hence, Clause xx (@) and (b) of the order are not
applicable to the Company for the year.

For JMT & Associates
Accountants

Firm R 0.104167W

Trilok Suthar

Partner =

Membership No.:107842 |(*| MUMB; |
UDIN:23 10384285z maH &

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 29, 2023



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in para 2 (g) under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members
of Kesar Multimodatl Logistics Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Kesar Multimodal Logistics Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Mmanagement is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAT"), These responsiblilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reiiable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of Internal financial controls, both appiicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standa rds and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with eéthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether atequate internal financial controls with reference to

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating

statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and Gperating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The
Procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, Including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on tha Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements,




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal finandial contro! with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted dccounting principles. A company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
itatements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
Lontirols, material misstaterments due te eiror or fraud fay occur and not be detected,
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become Inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controis
with reference to financial statements Were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
vased on the inteimnal contial with reference w financial stalements uiteria established by
the Company Considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For JMT & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regi 0. 104167 W -
' T

- 7 -b;_,.- = :u'_;‘
TriloR Suthar *’f \‘qa;:?'\';*
Partner !: L MLMB A
Membership No.:107842 | P
UDIN: R T

23|10 F§H2BKZMEH 2|20 3 u;?}.‘.‘f-""-'
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 29, 2023



KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(% in Lakhs)
Az at 31st March, Az at 31st March,
Particulars : Note No. 2023 A0%2
L ASSETS
| Non-current assets
a] Property, Plant and Equipment A1 11,156:06 11,872.40
b} Capital Work in Progress 3.2 537.92 5347.92
¢} Right to Use-Lease Assets a3 G28.56 054,20
d] Itangible Asscts 3.4 2.18 2232
¢| Financial Assets
- Others i 187.03 54,41
2  |Current asscts
a] Financial Assets
i} Trade Receivables B 132.61 231.69
ii] Cash and Cash Equivalents G 23.59 G810
iii] Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 7 S2.99 115,24
iv| Others 8 55.27 G600
B Current Tax Assets g9 12.64 33.31
o] Qther Currrent Assets 10 86.24 10060
TOTAL ASSETS 13,175.09 14,037.09
Il |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |EguiTY
a) Equity Share Capital 11 4. 180,00 A4, 180.00
b} Other Equity 12 (15,488,723 {13,580 85)
2 LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilitics
a] Fimancial Liabilities
i} Borrowings 13 5,373.26 4.827.39
if} Lease Liabilities 14 161 48 154.65
b} Provisions 15 625 1269
3 |[Cuarrent liabilities,
a) Financial Liabifitics
i] Borrowings 16 1,577.46 -
ii) Lease Linbilitica 1T 43,73 44265
111} Trade Pavables
=Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 18 .78 22,10
~Total outstanding dues of creditors sther than micro enterprises
and amall enterprises 18 109,76 129,37
v} Other financial liabilites 19 16,7T87.40 17,1102
by Gther Current Liabilities 20 417.41 T3l.51
c) Provisions 21 2.28 .56
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13,175.09 14,037.09
Significant Accounting policics 2
The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per our Report of even date For nnd on beholf of the Board of Directors

For and on behalf of
JMT & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104167TW)

Fgweméw/

H R Hilachand KD
Chairman irector
DIN 00294835 IN 00515391

Trilok Suthar
Partner
Membership No. 107842
Udiv: 2310382 BisZMBH 3|2 8 "‘H B
V J Doshi B\in[h
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 20th May 2023
Place :- Mumbal
Date : 29th May 2023




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March, 2023

(¥ In Lakhs)
~ T As at 31st March, As at 31st March;
Particulars Kote No. 2023 2022
1. |[Income From Operations 22 346,81 1,002.12
1. |Other Income 23 240,37 16.70
I Total Income (I + II) 587.18 1,018.82
V. |Expenses:
Employee benelits expense 249 127.42 202.01
Finance Cost 25 1.648.66 2.824.83
Drepreciation and amortization expense 3 TBT .20 TH1 .86
Other expenses 26 382,70 1,055.71
Total Expenses 2,946.07 4,874.41
V. |Profit{|Loss) before tax (III-TV) |2,358.89) (3,855.59)
V1. |Tax Expense:
{a} Current fax .00 0.00
{b) Earlier vears tax .23 RE]
[c) Delerred tax .00 0,00
YIl. |Balance of Profit/|Loss) carried to Balance Shect [V-VI) [2,359.12) (3,855.59)
VIl |Other Comprehensive Income
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
fif Measurements of deflined employee benefit plans 3.80 1.50
[ii] Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 1o peofit or
loss. (3.0 000
BA1) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss, (o 0.0
{if) Incame tax relating to fems that will be reclassified to profit or
lssa, .00 000
Total Other Comprehensive Income 3.90 1.50
1%, [Total Comprehensive Income for the Perlod (VI + VIII) {2,355.22) {3,854.09)
X, |Basic & Diluted Earnings per equity share as [5.64) [9.224
| Mominal vialue of share 10 [Previous year: © 10}
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements,

As per our Report of even date T For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

%

For and on behalf of /{ : L__:"E )
JMT & Associates = ':P“t‘ : /
Chartered Accountants = \\fﬁ.}‘ W Mf\""ﬂ A
Firm tration No.104¥67TW [{ 2| artinrm ag |90 H‘(/’_—"
i | LR
wgl? :_‘\ IUNMBAI { '} R Kilachand Devgup P
-

e Chalrman ctor

i

¥ >
Trilek Suthar \ {2}-:‘;@.{’ DIN 00294835 0051539
Partner A

Membership No. 107842

Udin: 22103542 BKZMBH 3128 r :
Place : Mumbal N ~1~‘\-"‘"'-“:ﬁ\--.' g
Date ; 29th May 2023 V J Doshi Sarika Sing
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : 20th May 2023




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{ In Lakhs)

Farticulars

For the year
ended 3]st
March, 2023
{Audited)

For the year

cended 3lat

March, 2022
{Audited)

CASH FLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES:

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit/|loss) before tax to net cash fows:
Deprecintion and amonisation expense
Intemst lneome
Finance cost
Burndry balnnces written back
Provisien for Expected credit loss
Profit/{Loss) on termination of leasc
I'rafit/ (Loss) on Sede of Propecty, Plant ol Equipment

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Incroagse/ [Decrease | in Working Capital

[Trerense)f Decrease in Trawle Receivabiles

Increase]f Deerease in other current assels

(lietense] f Deereass in Non Current Flnancl Asseiy

{increase] Deerease in Qther Current Financeal Assets

Increasef|Decrease) in Trade Pavables

Increpse f{Decrease ) in olber eorrent linlilites

Inerease/ {Decrease) in current Financial Liabilities - Others

Inepease f (Ieerease ) in Current provisions

Inereace f (Deorease ) in Fop-current Provisions

CASH [USED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Taxes | Pald]f Befund recebved (net)

NET CASH [USED IN) /f GENERATED FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchase of property, plant and cquipment including intangible assets & capitnl work in progreas
Hale of property, plant amd equipment

Inferest Received

NET CASH |(USED IN) / GENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Procecds [rom Long term Borrowings

Repayment of Long term Borrowings

Procecds rom Short term Borrowings

Repayment of Short term Borrowings

Interest Maicd

Lease: linbilitics paid

Repayment of Term Loans under OTS

NET CASH [USED IN} [ GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE /{ DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C |
OPENING BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
COMPONENT OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash aml Cash Equivalents

Cther Balances with Bank®*

(Held as liensecurity with bank and customer)
TOTAL CABH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

{2,358,89)

FET.a0
(9,19

|, b4R.65
[2.13)
[2.02)

63.72

10111
1,74
[128.38)
10,73
30,52
[1ot.at)
S.08
5.28)
{2.53)
(97.74)
20.45
(77.29)

[211.02
0.07
1858
(192.37)

1,728.30
260000
1030

[ 410,310
(50,04
{457.06)
{1.,350.30]
161.90

[107.76)
18a, 34
76.58

23549
5d949

76.58

(3,855.54)

T91.85
{9.42|
2,824,873

{040
{2.47)
{0,043

(251.35)

2437
(22.77)
13778
{4, 7]
(34,30

16400

3.38
|G BT
(203.32)
[7.48)
{210.80)

[15.07)
LA
3206

{11.71}

B44.05

{18.05)
[+ L3 7
{76,150
334,52
112.11
72,93
184.34
o, 140
115.24

184.34

Significant nccounting policles [Refor Note 2)
* Oither Bank balances are fixed deposits held as len/ securiny with Bank and customer

Figures in broclkets are outflows
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Hnte | { The Caah Flow Stalement bas been paepares) aler the "ndivert Method” ss seg aut an Indien Acemitng Standanl (Ind-A5 7 | - Stelement of Cash Flow

Wote 2 1 The fancpbinents to lnd &g ¥ Canh Flow ststements requires the entities tn provide dbinclasisres that enalde aserdoal Daagcinl statements 10 evaluale chonges in labilitien anniog
Iraen nancing activdtes, inchisbing ath changes ansing from cash Nows and non cashs Aeas changes, suggesting inclasion of reconciliniion between the epening sl olesing halnmes i
balance sheet for hahdities arising frim Enancing sctivites, tnomeet the disclisure requirement. This amembmenst his beemme eflective o T apredl 21T anil the requirml Qs disare 6

manele leelow, There du no other mpact en feanceal Statemerts dae oo U amendinent.

Changes o linkilitlos srising from fipuncieg activition,

Mon Cash Chanjes ;
Az wt March 31,1 Net Cank T Current/Non | Other Non | As At March
Sarirees a0z | e | Tar¥alne | o " Cash a1, 2023
3 Clastfiontion | Changes
Tnstivwtiigs Mo eurrem 4,497.38 454084 W0 . 5,372,236
Huprowingu curreil 17, 110,02 FAT. 0 - . H941.50 17,9364

As par nar Report of even date
For and oo bohall of Far and an bohalf of the Poard of TErectum

JMT & Asseclntan
Chartored Accountants

JH Bergupt
Dfpector
w DLN QD294835 MOELS3T]
Trilok Suthar o ' z
Partmer LA M-\_
Muomhersbdy Bo 1OTEAR \i lh“’
¥ J Boahi Bingh

Flacs @ Miumbal Chiel Flaamclal Cflesy Company Seoreiary

Brafe 1 20tk May 3023
Flage | Mumbsl

l/’{l'rh: 2'3104511‘2.EUEZP’-HH a2 Diate : 29th May 2023




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

A Equity Share Capital (Equity shares of * 10 cach issoed, subscribed and fully paid)

Balance as at April 1, 2022

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due
to prior period

Restated balance at the
beginning of the current
reporing period

Changes in equily
share capital during
the current year

Balance as at March 31,
2023

errors
4,1R0.00 4,180.00 4,180.00
Balanee asat April 1, 2021 Changes in Equity  |Restated balance at the Chianges in equity Balance as at March 31,
Share Capital due  |beginning of the previous  |share capital during 2022
to prior period reparting period the previous year
LTS
4, 180.00 - 4, 180000 - 4,160,
1 Other Equity (¥ I Lakhs)
Retained Earnings Capital Contributions Other
Particulars Comprehensive Total Other Equity
Income
Balance as al March 31, 2021 (14, 4979.43) 441127 251 {10,565.65)
lotal Comprehensive income for the year
Trrefity (Loss) for the yoar (3,H55.54) {3,B55.59)
Cither Comprebensive Income 1.50 1.50
Aildition during the year R A9 B38.K9
Balance as at March 31, 2022 ({18,435.02) 5,250,106 & {13 580L85)
Total Comprehensive income for the year
FProfit/ (Loss) for the year 235012 (2350.12)
Hher Comprehensive Income 390 3.90
Addition during the year 447 35 447.35
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (21,194.14) 5,687,51 7. [15,458.72)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Bnancial statements

As per our Report attached.
For and on behalf of

JMT & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm wn No.104167TW

Trilok Suthar
Partner
Membership No, 107842

Place :- Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2023

fontriet~

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors

H R Kilachand
Chairman
DIN 00294835

N~6~Wm'

V J Doshi

5

/)

Barika Singh

Chief Financilal Officer Company Secretary

Place ;- Mumbai
Date : 29th May 2023




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2023

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Company was incorporated on 30" September 2011 as a Special Purpose Vehicle to
execute Concession Agreement entered on 24t October 2011 between the Company and
the Madhya Pradesh State Agricultural Marketing Board (Mandi Board) to set up a
“Composite Logistics Hub” at Powerkheda, Madhya Pradesh, on Public Private
Partnership (PPP) basis. The company is having registered office at Oriental House, 7, J.
Tata Road, Churchgate, Mumbai-400020. The company is 100% subsidiary of Kesar
Terminals & Infrastructure Limited (Holding Company) having registered office at
Oriental House, 7, .J. Tata Road, Churchgate, Mumbai-400020.

In view of defaults in repayment of borrowings, the petition was filed by the lenders. In
view of the same, the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (“NCLT") by order dated
17th February 2022 had admitted the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP")
application filed by Bank of Baroda against the company and had appointed the Interim
Resolution Professional to carry out functions as mentioned under Insolvency &
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

However, pursuant to the sanction of the One Time Settlement (OTS) by lenders and the
subsequent filing of form 12A by RP for the withdrawal of the CIRP in case of the
company, the NCLT vide its Order dated 19.09.2022 withdrew the CIRP proceedings.
Consequently, the powers of the Board of Directors which were suspended on
17/02/2022 due to CIRP are reinstated.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Statement of Compliance with INDAS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind-AS") under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind-AS are prescribed under Section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended from time to time.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly 1ssued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Ministry of Corporate affairs issued notification on March 31, 2023, and have made
changes in the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) namely Ind AS 101, Ind AS 102,
Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115, Ind AS 1, Ind AS 8, Ind AS 12 and Ind
AS 34. These amendments shall be applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after April 01, 2023

B. Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except the

following:
» Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value.
» Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value.

[ P D— g 4




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+ March, 2023

C. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current /
non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it 1s expected to be
realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, held primarily for
the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting
period and cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are
classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held
primarily for the purpose of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after
the reporting period and there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

D. The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee (). These financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest

Lakhs, except when otherwise stated.
E. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the
financial statements, the reported amounts of the revenue and expenses during the
reporting period and disclosures of contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements.  Although these estimates are based upon the management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these
estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period
in which the results are known or materialize.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any changes
in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which the changes
are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in notes to the financial statements.

Key accounting estimates:

a) Income taxes:

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in
determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

b) Defined Benefit Obligation:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and defined benefit leave encashment
plan, the present value of the gratuity obligations is determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the

£ nﬁ-; g




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2023

a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the
appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future
salary escalation and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

¢) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
financial statement cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

F. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from services is recognised on accrual basis and when the consideration is
reliably determinable, and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of
the consideration.

Revenue is measured at the consideration received or receivable. The amount
recognised as revenue is exclusive of GST (Goods and Services Tax) and discounts.

Insurance Claims are recognised only when the claim is admitted/expected to be
admitted and there is no uncertainty on receiving the claim.

Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis considering the amount outstanding
and the rate applicable.

G. Property, Plant and Equipment

a) Property, Plant and Equipment (whether Tangible or Intangible) are initially
measured at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation/ amortization/
impairment loss (if any), net of Input tax credit availed under Goods and services Act
(wherever claimed). The cost of fixed assets includes taxes, duties, freight, borrowing
cost, concession premium and pre-operative costs if capitalization criteria are met
and other incidental expenses incurred in relation to their acquisition/ bringing the
assets for their intended use.

b) Subsequent additional expenditure related to Property, Plant and Equipment are
added only if they increase the future economic benefits from the existing assels
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

c) Concession Premium paid/payable by the Company to the Mandi Board forxm
of the land received under the concession agreement dated 24.10.2011 #MR°
construction period is capitalized as fixed assets.

/f/' v g )?



KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+t March, 2023

H. Depreciation:
a) Depreciation on Plant and Equipment and Building has been provided on
Straight Line Method based on remaining useful life of the assets in compliance
with the provisions as specified in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Depreciation on other assets has been provided on Written Down Value Method
based on remaining useful life of the assets in compliance with the provisions as
specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

c¢) The estimated useful life of the property, plant and equipment are as given below:

Description of Asset Estimated useful
life :

Building and Land/Site 44 Years
Development

Plant and equipment 15 Years
Roads 10 Years
Electrical Installation 10 Years
Railway Siding 15 Years
Vehicles 6 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computer 3 Years
Computer Software 6 Years

d) For assets purchased / disposed off during the year, depreciation has been
provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the useful life of the asset period, at
the applicable rates.

¢] Depreciation on assets, whose actual cost does not exceed ¥ 5,000 is provided at
the rate of hundred percent and is fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

f) Premium on Leasehold Land/Concession Premium is amortised over the period of
the lease/Concession period.

g) In case where property is having useful life more than lease/concession period,
depreciation has been provided over the lease/concession period remaining from
the year of capitalization.

h) The useful life and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by the
management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at the end of each

financial year.

I. Capital Work-in-Progress:

These are stated at cost to date relating to projects in progress, incurred during
construction [/ pre-operative period (Net of income) and the same is allocated to the
respective fixed assets on the completion of their construction.

J. Borrowing Cost:
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or produ

qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get readys

f— " g £



KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

K. Employee benefits:

Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be fully paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during

the period when the employees render the services.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the
Company pays specified contributions to a separate entity. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and
Pension Scheme. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the

related service,

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of
service with the Company at the time of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is
paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity
Act 1972,

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated
using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the
benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services.

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to
the Other Comprehensive Income,

L. Tax Expenses

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in the other comprehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.

- Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.

- Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit.

L
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2023

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liahility is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss are recognized outside
profit or loss/either in other comprehensive income or in equity.

M. Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the
year (net of prior period items) attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

N. Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive] as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the end of each reporting period. These are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

0. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent asset:

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that
is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying
economic resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably, The company does not recognize a contingent
Liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the company.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements
except when there is a virtual certainty to receive the same.

P. Leases:

As a lessee

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments madc
at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 1ncurred AE
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to res
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives rece'
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2023

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use
asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are
determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the
right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for
certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental borrowing
rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following:

— Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement date;

— Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease
unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company changes its assessmernt
of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘Joans and
borrowings’ in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short term leases of real estate properties that have a lease term of less than 12 months.
The company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Under Ind AS 17

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease tran
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asse
Company. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Finance legfics
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2023

capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as
appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Land under perpetual lease is accounted as finance lease which is recognised at upfront
premium paid for the lease and the present value of the lease rent obligations. The
corresponding liability is recognised as a finance lease obligation. Land under non-
perpetual lease is treated as operating lease.

Operating lease payments for land are recognised as prepayments and amortised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals, if any, arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected
inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance
sheet based on their nature,

Arrangements in the nature of lease

The Company enters into agreements, comprising a transaction or series of related
transactions that does not take the legal form of a lease but conveys the right to use the
asset in return for a payment or series of payments. In case of such arrangements, the
Company applies the requirements of Ind AS 116 - Leases to the lease element of the
arrangement. For the purpose of applying the requirements under Ind AS 116 - Leases,
payments and other consideration required by the arrangement are separated at the
inception of the arrangement into those for lease and those for other elements.

Q. Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the financial statement comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less from the
date of acquisition, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

R. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assessment is done at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is any
indication that an asset (tangible and intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such
indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset / cash generating
unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written
down to the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss.
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price
and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of
its uselul life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheetl date as to whether there is

any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accou
periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. A reversal of an impairment

. i . . -
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 33"(
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

8. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial Instruments
are further divided in two parts viz. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.

Part I - Financial Assets

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets which are not at fair
value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

b) Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, [inancial assets are classified in three

categories:

Financial Asset at amortised cost:
A Financial Asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met;

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

+ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount cutstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIRE) method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in finance income and the losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Asset at FVTOCI (Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income)
A Financial Asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if following criteria are met:

* The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows (i.e. SPPI) and selling the financial assets

Financial instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest inicome,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previousl
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit an
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Finanecial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2023

Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Financial Assets at FVTPL (Fair Value through Profit or Loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for [inancial instruments. Any financial instrument, which
does not meet the criteria for cateporization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is
classified as at FVTFL.

Financial insttuments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily de-recognised (i.e. removed from the Company's
financial statement) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

*» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

d) Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

1. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.,
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

2. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

3. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

4, Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

5. Financial puarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:

- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The apphcatmn of s1mphfied apprnd::h does not require the Cﬂmpa_ny to track ch T

at each reporting date right from its initial recognition.
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL
is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance [(or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Part II - Financial Liabilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement
The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts and financial guarantee contracts.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through the Statement of Profit and Loss. Loans and borrowings and payables are
also classified as above.

b) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described

below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through statement of profit and loss. Financial liabilities are classified as
held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss is designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in
Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains / losses
are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair

through profit and loss.
b
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+t March, 2023

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when
the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally
applies to borrowings.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified
as liabilities under borrowings. The dividends on these preference shares, if any, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised
less cumulative amortisation.

c¢) De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of

an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss,

d) Off setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
financial statement if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

T) Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted at the initially recorded exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currency at the end of the reporting date are translated at the year-end rates.
Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recopgnized in the statement of profit and loss. In case of forward contracts (non-
speculative), the premium or discount being the differences between the forward
exchange rate and the exchange rate at the inception of the contract is recognized as
expense or income over the life of the contract. The exchange difference either on
settlement or translation is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

- N
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2023

U) Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that (i) the company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (i)
the grant/subsidy will be received.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is netted off with the related costs,
which they are intended to Compensate. Government grants / subsidies received
towards specific fixed assets have been deducted from the gross value of the concerned
fixed assets otherwise netted off on prorate basis to all eligible fixed assets,

The loan or assistance is initially recognized and measured at fair value and the
government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the
loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

4, NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ABRETS - OTHERS [T in Lakhs)
3 An ot 3lst Aot 3let
Particolars - Binrch, 2023 - | March, 2023
1] Becurity Deposits .mr.'f.'f B
(b} Flaed Depasits with muoiuimy of ode than 12 modaths 12641
Hep Infeeest on Bank Depazits wccrued bul not due 425
Total 187.03 Sd.d41
5. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - TRADE RECEIVABLES |t in Laklia)
T : Asat 31t | Asat3lst
Partienlars March, 3023 © | Maroh, 2023
Unsecuared
Ja| Considered goosl 1326k 20
b} Conskdered Doubiful 2,71 4,73
Total 135,32 20,43
Leas: Pravision for Expecied credit loss (271 [ET
Teial 132.61 231.69
Provision for gxpected credit loss Bas been maede 41 2% of the Trde Recrivaldes
For the year ended 31.03.2023 {t in L-.thF|
= § WIE ;hr l‘n'l.l-n'n‘hl perlods from doe date of pay . t "_'_
Particulors LBII"II-HI. & 5w -1 ﬂi‘ll.'.a_:
months __yeas 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs Fears Total
|1l Hmdispritenl Trade receivishles - considered goad nif 25 LTV 24 34 (55 (N 135,332
] Undispused Trade Recelaables - which hove signilicant incresse inocredit risk
i) Unndispubed Trade Receivables = coedil dmpeaineed
(iv] Eisputed Trode Brocivibles—consicdered good
{v] Dispuied Trade Reerivables = whicl have significant inceease in credin risk
[vi) DHsgastes) Trishe Becelsaldes — credit bngeiited
For the year ended 31.03.2022 [ in Lakba)
- ) Ontstanding for following periods from doe date of paymenty
Particulars Less than 6 6 months -1 than 3
months yoar 1-2 yoars 23§ yanura Totul
(i) Handisputed Trade receivables = o ril ool 202,04 2303 b B2 037 A.62 P [ B
(i3] ndinpited Trade Becelvalldes - which hoave significent increase in credit misk
(sl Unnalisputed] Trsde Beceivilles - eredit dmpairee
(iv] CHaputed Teabe Becelvables—cansidered good
1v] Disputed Trade Receivables < which hive significant Increase in credit risk
[efy Drisgritee Trage Becelvabies — coedit imnpaired
6, CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS % dn La,klﬂ!
b ' : = ‘Asatdlst | Aswtdlst
Particulurs March, 2023 | Maroh, 2022
a. Balance with Scheduled Banks
Iy In Corrent Accounts 21.54 2773
(ii] In Fixeel Depasits Avcounts with engenal maturiy of less than 3 months - .01
. Cish on homnad 2.05 230
Total 23.59 69.10
7. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - DANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
{2 in Lakhs)
: Az at 3ist Asat 3ist
Pﬂ'ﬂ-“ll‘l‘l- ! w.ms :“Il_;'!.'l'!_h,'ﬂm
Fixed Depasils with msiurily periced of more than 3 manths bog bess than 12 monthis 5250 11524
{Held s les seeurity with bank and costomer}
Total 852,99 115.24
B. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS . OTHERSE |% in Lakhz}
: CfAs ot Flst As at dist
EMbmary March, 2023 | March, 2022
Unaccared , Conaidered Good
] Aceriaml Income a MLT3
(] Serisrity Deguisitn 55,27 BE.aT
Total 5527 G 00
9. CURRENT TAX ASSETS {7 im Lakhs)
CAx wt 318t Az at 3lat
Particulars - March, 2023 Marels, 2023
Tax Decliectesl ol Sokiiee 12 sl A4.010
Tatal 1264 33,31




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMUTED

Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

_19. OTHER CURRENT ABSETS {¥ in Lakhs)
; ~Anat 31t Adat 31t
Particulaes ‘March, 2023 | | March, 2022
|n] Interest oo Bk Deposits nrx:runi Tk nak due .ﬂ.ﬂ'-i 13,05
b GET Lnguit Ceedidl & Cash Ledger Balances 461 20.03
te} Prefuld Expenses 20,24 33.27
] Addvance to Yendors for Expenses 1939 2345
(e] Shraup Urataiy Fund 028 -
(I Cieatuley >
Tatal B6.24 100.60
11. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL [t_'i_g Lalchs)
latat As nt dlst As ot Alst
o e March, 2023 | March, 2023
Anthoriacd
4,40, 00,000 [March 31, 2002 4,20 00,006 Faypuity !'Sl'ull'l'_ﬂ- ol © M) ench 420000 4, 200,00
7O 00000 [Murch 31, 2002 3P000,000) ¢ Cumulative Redeemalde Preferience
Shares af ™ 10 eacly 3,700 3,700,000
Issued, Bubneribed 8 Paid ap
A, 18,00, 000 (March 30, 2023 4, 18000000 Bquiiy Shores of ' 168 eboh fully poid up A, L8400 i, 1 8000
Taotal 4,180.00 4,180.00
(] Recongilintion of the number of Shares cutstanding at beginning and at end of the reporting perlod
Fear ndMB}n Huplqiﬂﬂ Tﬂnh.\ted am mn.mz
3 - Mumiber (% im Lakhs] | Wumber | {Uin Lakhs)
Equity Shares
Shires outstanding st the beginning of the year A 1800 4, 18000 ALE0N 4, 18000
[Shares lssued during e vear - . - =
Shares hewght back during the year . . - -
Shares oulstamiing ot the end of the year 418.00 4 N BOL.O0 4 L8600 o, TR0

The Coinipony has Equity Shares haviog a par vidug of $10 per Share, Each Holder of

Enuity Shares is entitbed to one vore

per Shiare,

{b) Detuils of Bharcholdera bolding more than 5% Bhaces in the Company

An ut 316t Basch, 2023 An at Blat March, 3022
Particulars o, of Bhiras C “Ho. of Bhures S
Equity Shares
Resar Terminals & Infrastructure Limlted {Halding Campany 4, 1K, 00,400 10063 &, 18,000,000 1643
[¢] Bharobiolding of Promeoters
As at 31st March, 2023
A at 31t March, 2033 As at 31st March, 2022
T : Lo | e wa
Ko, of Bhares | No. of Ghases | total
| shares
I Kesar Terminats & Infrastracture Limited (Hobding Company) A, L& £H,000 100 - A, | 800, (00 100
12. OTHER EQUITY [T dm Lakhs|
o = Asetdlat [ AsatBlet
Particulars March, 2023 ';Hml:l;*m*.
[a] Retained E_IJIJ.IIII
Batance nt the beginning of the year | 18,835,002 (14, 870.43)
=} Het Prodit|-) Loss for the current year [2,350.12) |3.B55.5%)
Balanoe at the ond of the year [21,1%4,14) {18,835.02)
[b) Capital Contrilutions
Opening alnnoe 5250 10 441127
Aadditban durtng the year * Q47,45 LR R
Closing Balance 5,697.51 5,250.16
{e] Other Comprehensive Income
Crpening balance a0l 2.51
Aelditlon during the year .80 1.50
Closing Balance 7.91 4.01
Tatal |15,488,72) (13, 580.85)
* Breakup of Capital Contribution during the year
Unsecured Loin taken Trodn Kesar Terminals & Infrastroctore Lid 447,45 THO.55
|Carpotate Gusrantes ssued by Kesar Termibnmls & Infmstruciure L 4 52.04
Tatal 447,25 A38. 69
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

13, NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS {t in Lakhs)
: 5 As nt 31st hs ot 3lst
Satinals March, 2023 | March, 2022
Unsecured Borrowlngs
1) Lown from Folifing Company 80305 JARRAT
Repayalile o demand aler 36 monthaThe elfectve interest mate used Tor Gabe
valuition of these loans ls mkenal TE30% poa. however these loans are interest ee;
{reler mole TOfijh
i) Preference Share (Ungecured) 1, A79.61 1,330, 02
A LOO0 | March 31, 2022 348, L0 G Cumulstive Redeemabie Preference
Shares of © HEeach Tully paid up
The effective interest rale used for these prederence shores BBaucd for 15 yenrs is
10,50 puns
Total 5,373.26 #4,827.39
14, NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILITIES {1 in Lakhs)
: As ot 31t As at 31st
Particulars March, 2023 la_tu_eh. 2022
Lense Linkidbtles B l.48 154465
Totul 161.48 154.65
15, NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - FROVISIONS (1 in Lakhs)
e Axat Alst Ax nt__ﬂ:_l-t:_
P‘urﬂmﬂm Maych, 2023 ‘Muarch, 2033
Frovigien for cmployee bencfita
in) Gratuity [Funded] - 2an
il Leave encasianent {Unlinded) 525 10,23
Total 6.25 12,69
16, CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS |2 In Lakhs]
Asut31st | | Asatdist
Eartlonin Mareh, 2023 | March, 2023
Unzecured Borrowings from related party
1) Seel Investments Pve Lid SR
Terms af Repayments- Repayahle on demand and carrving  Interest rate of 8% poa,
i} Ctirrent maturities of Long term borrowings
Lasn from Helding Company [refer note 1300} 107746
Total 1,577.46 -
17, CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - LEASE LIABILITIES [% in Lalkls)
: ‘A et 3lat. | Asatdls
].’l-'lu!!lll-l-.t'i. March, 2023 | Mar b, 2022
Lenss Linhilities 46.73 442.05
Tatal 46,73 4265
18. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLES % in Lokhs]
As at 3lat As at 31st
Particulirs March, 2023 ‘March, 2022
(1] Total ouratanding Dues to Miceo and Soall Enlerprives 1.7TH 3210
] Total outstanding Dues of Creditors other thin Miero amd Small Enterpedscs 104, T 128,37
Tatal 111.64 151.47
Trade Poyables ngeing schedule
As at 31st March, 2023 {2 in Lakhs)
" ] ‘Outstanding for following periods from due dote of payment
i Less tham 'l year | 12 years 2.3 yoars -“F';*r 3 rotal
[iSMIE 1.7H - - - 1.7H
[iil (M by H5.0H 182 041 285 109,70
(k)] D puateed dues - MENE . . . . .
liv] Disputed dues - Dihers
Total BT7.46 20.82 .41 2.B5 111.54
As at 31t March, 2023 [ in Lukhs]
Outstanding for following periods from due date of poyment
Particulam b | 1T i ; More than 3
Lexa than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years yuars Total
[IMSME 2210 - - - 2310
[ii]CFL b Hi.63 (.l J0.8G 11484
L) Disputed dues - MSME - -
liv] Disputed dues - Gihers 144K 14,48
Tatal 106.73 0.41 29.88 14.48 | 15147 |




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

19, CURRENT FINANCIAL LIARILITIES - OTHERS {% in Lalhs)
As ot 3lat Anat 3lst
Particulars Murch, 2023 | March, 2022
1) Feealleet Long Term Borrowings including Interest [Secured]® 16,35:4.22 1T L1040
[la) Interest outsianding
il Interest ncereed on OTS dees 3837
|:i:| Others Ay, 30 -
l¢] Unearmed Incomi J.08 -
Tatal 16, 7T8Y.40 17,110.02

* Rocalled Long Term Borrowlngs including Interest (Soeurod) - Project Loans
Primoary Security ¢ Secured by waay of Lsl ehorge onall fixed assels exclading Lond sinee the D §s givens by the Mandi Board under the concession agreement) of

the compaosite logistics hub ol Powerkbedn, Madbyn Pradesh on paripasso bosis,

Colloteral security ; 2nd charge over all current asscts {present & feture] of the Composite Legisties Hub at Powerkbecn, Madbva Prdesh on paripassa basis.

Corporate Guarantee ; Corporate guarantes of Kesar Terminads & Infrastryciure Limiged (Holding Comgpany]

Pheelpze of Investment of Rs 35000 Lokhs held by Rolding COIMY,

Terms of Ropiyment:
Term Loans are repayable o 16 1o 28 equal quarterly installments afler the moratorium period eanging frem 3 4o 4 years [previeus year 3 (64 yeors] Trom the dite of
Tt disbursement of the respective term loans.

The company has entercd into One Time Settlement JOTS) with lenders The company haes masde par pavments bowieds OTS amd there e overdues as on 31032023,
The company is seeking more time from lenders for repayment of OTS duoes,

Tnterest an Bank tevim lgans have Been provided wpobo 30006.2022 o the outstarnding camulative ern loan balanees al the rate of Interest whieh s in the range of
100 50%: to DETO% (P 1060046 1o 122, 70°95) and which is based on thee argginal sanetion letiers.

Afer the sanetion of One Time settlement [OTS] by the lendecs, Inteeest on overdue OTS anownd s prosided as per OFS sanetion terms ab the rete of imerest which in

the: range ol 95 o 12%:

20. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES |t in Lokhs)
B As at 31st i
i Mireh, 2023
[a] Advance from Customers 1494 LEREE
thy [':|.~|1r|.-=i1|1. from Customers 2,0H1 H.0K
[} Payalbes for Capital Goods AT0.T9 SHD.04
(b} Statutary liahilities .86 300
ferp Chptstanding Expemnses 1281 123,10
Total 41741 T31.81
21. CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONE [T in Lakhs)
ikl Asat3lst. | Asat 3lst
Taene March, 2023 | Marh, 2022
Frovision for omployen benefits
(] Gratuiry | Funded) - 3,83
[} Leswer Encashmerd {Unfunded) 208 373
Total 2.28 T.56
22, INCOME FROM OFERATIONS [t in Lakhs]
: ‘Far the year | For the year
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
Morch, 2023 Maorch, 2022
Sole of Gervices from |
() Cold Steange 41,84 A4y
(b} beabrnd Comialner Depol 649.51 303.58
[} Fail Qperatinng 13244 ANT. 6
(e} Chenernl Wiire housing RT3 Oy 54
Total S46.81 1,002.12
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

MNotes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

23. OTHER INCOME (¥ in Lakhs)
For the year | For the year
Particulars. ended 31st | ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
(a} Interest on
(i} Fixed Deposits 9,01 9,25
{it) Interest on Income Tax Refund 271 1.39
(i) Others 0.18 0.16
(b} Miscellaneous Income - .01
() Insurance Claim Received = 2.87
{d] Profit on Sale of Propery, Flant & Equipments - .06
{e] Prowision for Expected credit loss wntten bacl 2.02 .49
1N Creditors not pavable written back 226,45 d
lig] Profit on Termination of Lease 247
Total 240,37 16.70
24. EMFLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (¥ in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars qnde;d. 3lst ‘ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
[a) Salaries and Wages 0d 21 163.10
(b] Contribution to Provident Fund 4,31 i 1
[} Gratuity 2.82 345
(d} Stafl Welfare Expenses 0.49 0.65
(e} Wages-Others 25.59 27.50
Total 127.42 202.01
25. FINANCE COSTS {2 in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
) March, 2023 | March, 2022
[a) Interest Expense 1,630.75 2.806.35
(b} Dther Barrowing Costs
Finance Charpes 17,291 18.48
Total 1,648.66 2.824 .83
26, OTHER EXPENSES (T in Lalkhs)
=] For the year Fﬂ_r_‘thi. year
Particulars ended 31st  ended 31st
March, 2023 | March, 2022
(a) Transpartation,Labour and Handling Charges 111.38 T60.32
(b} Power & Fuel 4908 51.08
{c] Equipment Hire Charges 4.56 4,41
{d] Repairs
{1 Plant & Machinery 17.28 37.41
(i) Buildings . 3.32
(i} Others 10.34 12.90
(e} Insurance 18,12 19.60
(f] Rates & Taxes 11,58 28.13
{g) Sclling agent Commission & Brokerage .95 1.78
{h)] Legal, Professional and Retainership fees 83,48 70,16
{i} Directors Sitting Fees 5.40 5.40
(i} Auditors Remuneration
(i} Statutary Audit Fees including Quarterly Reviews 4.00 4.00
[ii} Out Of Pocket Expenses 0,10 .10
(k) Travelling Expenses 13.46 15.29
(1) Security Service Charges 20.55 19,38
[m] Connectivity and Internet Charpes 8.25 B.04
{n) Sundry Balances written off 19.03 -
{o) Miscellaneous Expenses 5.14 4.79
Total 382,70 1,055.71
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31t March, 2023

27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

Mil [Previous Year: Nil).

28. CONTINGENT LIAEILITIES:

(¥ in Lakhs)
Na i As at 31 As at 31
t f cl :
Yature of chum/ Domands March, 2023 | March, 2022
Guarantee:
Performance Bank Guarantee
Given to Madhya Pradesh State Agricultural 700.00 700.00
Marketing Board (Mandi Board) to set up a
“Composite Logistics Hub” at Powerkheda in
Madhya Pradesh,
- Given to Principal Commissioner of Customs & 50.00 50.00
Central Excise, Bhopal
- Given to Food Cerporation of India, New Delhi 110.20 110.20
Claims against the company not acknowledged as
debts. 29.51 23.51
Contingent liability in respect of differential interest 1,431.15 0.00
on borrowings pending OTS pavments (also Refer note
42}
Total 2,320.86 889.71
29. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Defined Contribution Plans
For the year For the year
icul ended 31= ‘ended 31=
pattiicars March, 2023 March, 2022
(¥ in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
Employers Contribution to Provident Fund 4,12 6.98
Total 4.12 6.98

Defined Benefit Plan
i) Gratuity (Funded)
ii) Leave Encashment {(Non-funded)

i) Gratuity (Funded)

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits” actuarial valuation was

performed by independent actuaries in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plan.

P
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

{a) The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows: (¥ in Lakhs)
Defined Benefit (Gratuity) Plan
For the year | For the year
Earticulare ended on 31* | ended on 31%
March, 2023 March, 2022
Present Value of benefit obligations 7.50 1 1_24—
Fair Value of plan assets (7.69) (4.96)
Net liability /{Assets) (0.11) 6.28
Amount in balance sheet Liabilities/ {Assets) (0.11) 6.28 |
(b} The amounts recognized as Employee cost are as follows: (¥ in Lakhs)
Defined Benefit (Gratuity) Plan |
For the year For the year
Particulars ended on 31 ended on 31t
‘March, 2023 March, 2022
Current service cost 2.36 2.81
Interest on obligation 0.46 0.64
Expected return on plan assets 0.00 0.00
Total included in employee benefit expense 2.82 3.45
{c) Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of
opening and closing balances thereof are as follows: (¥ in Lakhs)
Defined Benefit (Gratuity)
Plan
Particulars For the year For the year
ended on 31 ended on 31+
‘March, 2023 March, 2022
Opening defined benefit obligation 11.24 Q.25
Service costs 2.36 2.81
Interest costs 0D.82 0.64
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to (0.18) 0.01
Change in Demographic Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to (0.23) [0.65)
Change in Financial Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to (3.58) {ﬂ.?Sr
Experience
Beneflits paid (2.84) (0.04)
Closing defined benefit obligation 7.59 11.24
{d) The amount recognized in the other comprehensive Income is as follows:

(% in Lakhs)

For the vear ended

For the year ended

Income

Particulars on 31% March, on 31* March,
2023 2022
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation for the {4.00) (1.42)
Period - —
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest 0.10 [0.08)

L
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars on 31* March, on 31* March,
2023 2022
Net (Income)/Expense for the Period (3.90) (1.50)
Recognised in OCI
(e) The Reconciliation of liability in the Balance Sheet are as follows:
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Defined Benefit (Gratuity) Plan
For the year ended | For the year ended
on 3lst March on 31st March
2023 2022 '
Opening net Liability/ (asset) 6.28 9.25
Expenses recognized in Statement ol Profit 2.82 3.45
and Loss
Expenses recognized in OCI {3.90) (1.50)
Benefit paid Directly by the Employer 0.00 (0.04)
Employers Contribution {5:31) (4.88)
Met  Liability/(Assets] Recognised in the (0.11) 6.28
Balance Sheet
H The amount recognized as Interest Cost in the statement are as follows:
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars ‘Defined Benefit (Gratuity) Plan
For the year ended For the year ended
on 31st March 2023 | on 31st March 2022
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the 11.24 9.25
beginning
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning {(4.95) 0.00
Net Liability / (Assets) At the Beginning 6.28 .25
Interest Cost 0.82 0.64
Interest Income (0.36) 0.00
Net Interest cost for Current Period 0.46 0.64

{g)} Changes in the fair value of plan assets representing reconciliation of opening and closing

balances thereof are as follows:

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars Defined Benefit (Gratuity) Plan

For the year For the year

ended on 31% ended on 31%

March, 2023 March, 2022
Opening fair value of plan assets 4,96 0.00
Expected return on plan assets (1,36 0.08

" Actuarial gains / (losses) (0.10) 0.00

Contributions by employer 5.31 4.88
Benefits paid [(2.84) 0.00
Closing fair value of plan assets ¥.69

o
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2023

(h)  Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted average|;

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

Defined Benefit (Gratuity) Plan

For the year ended
on 315 March,

For the year ended
on 31 March,

2023 2022 =
Discount rate 7.56% 7.33%
Salary escalation rate 2.00%, B.00%,
Attrition rate 3.00%, 1.00%
Expected return on plan assets 7 56% 7.338,

Maortality Tables

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality

[(Urban} (2012-14)
(Urban)
(i) Net Interest cost:
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended on 31 ended on 31
March, 2023 March, 2022
Defined benefit obligation 7.59 11.24
Plan assets (7.69) (4.98)
Surplus/ (deficit) {0.11) 6.28
Interest Cost 0.57 0.82
Interest Income (0.58) (0.36)
Net Interest cost for current Period (0.01) .46
i}y Experience Adjustment:
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended on 31+ ended on 31t
March, 2023 March, 2022
On plan Liability (Gains)/ Losses {3.58) [0.78)
On plan Assets Gains/ (Losses) 0.00 0.00
(k)  Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Fund
_ (% in Lakhs)
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years from the Date of Reporting
Particulars For the year ended on | For the year ended on
31 March, 2023 31=t March, 2022
1st Following Year 0.21 0.10
2nd Following Year D.22 0.12
3rd Following Year 0,24 0.15
4th Following Year 0.64 0.16
5th Following Year 027 0.39
Sum of Years 6 To 10 1.58 2.95
Sum of Years 11 and abave | 20.55 36.36




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+ March, 2023

{1} Sensitivity Analysis (¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended on 31 ended on 31#
March, 2023 March, 2022
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 7.59 11.24
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (0.89) (1.54)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 1.06 1.87
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 1.04 1.84
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (0.89) (1.54)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.06) (0.16)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnaover 0.06 0.18

1) The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The company's defined
benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by
the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees are responsible for the administration of the plan
assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

2) Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the following risks:

a) Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.See. Rate will
increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount
rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration
of asset.

b) Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the
members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

t) Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow,
Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally
reduces ALM risk.

d] Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for lifetime and payable till
retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

¢] Concentration Risk: Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with
the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although the probability
of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow stringent regulatory guidelines
which mitigate risk.

Para 139 ([¢) Characteristics of defined benefit plans:
During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments, and settlements.

Para 147 (a)
A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards

the trust fund is done as guided by rule 103 of Income Tax Rules, 1962

(i) Leave Encashment (Non-funded)

The liability for Compensated Leave Absence as at March 31, 2023 is ¥ 8.53 Lakhs (March 31,
2022: ¥ 13.95 Lakhs) disclosed under Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions and Current Liabilities
- Provisions.

Amount recognized as expense in respect of Compensated Leave Absence is ¥ 3.28 Lakhs (Mapeh
31, 2022:  0.35 Lakhs). ‘g A{@E‘"ﬁ
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+ March, 2023

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprises borrowings, trade and other payables,
and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company's operations and to support its operations directly or indirectly. The Company's
principal inancial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations,

The Company is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk, Market risk is applicable on variable
rate borrowing. Equity risk is not applicable since the company does not have equity
investments. The foreign exchange risk is not applicable since the company does not have long
term imports, The below note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how
the entity manages the risk:

Risk Management Exposure arising from Measurement | Management
Credit Risk Cash and cash | Aging analysis | Diversification of  bank
equivalents, trade deposits
receivables,  financial
assels measured atl
amortised cost.
Liguidity Risk Borrowings and other | Cash flow | Availability of committed
liabilities forecasts credit lines and borrowing
facilities
Market Risk- Variable Rate Interest rate Mix of fixed versus floating
Interest Borrowing sensitivity rate
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments,

Trade receivables
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any further services to major
customers are approved by the senior management.

On account of adoption of Ind-AS 109, the Company uses the expected credit loss model to
assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision matrix takes into account
available external and internal credit risk factors and the Company's historical experience for
customers.

a) Ageing:
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
0-180 days 65,25 202.08
More than 180 days 69.07 34.34
Total 135.32 236.42

P
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

b} Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables:
(% in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March As at March
31,2023 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 4.73 5.22
Add: - Additional provision made 0.00 0.00
Less: - Provision write off 0.00 0.00
Less: - Provision reversed 2.02 0.49
Balance at the end of the year 2.71 4.73

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’'s
finance department.

Liquidity Risk
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank loans, preference shares and unsecured loans.

The table below provides details regarding the maturities of significant financial liabilities as of

March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
(¥ in Lakhs)

Year ended 31st March, 2023 |

Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 5 yvears > D years Total
Term Loans.  * 16,354.22 16,354.22
Preference Shares 1,479.61 1,479.61
Loans 1577.46 3,.893.64 5,471.10
Trade Payables B7.46 24.08 111.54
Lease liability 46.73 51.04 110.44 208.21
Interest outstanding 430.10 430.10
Others 3.08 3.08
Year ended 31st Mn.l:h_, 2022

Particulars ‘| Lessthan 1year | 1to5years | >5 years Total
Term Loans * 17,110.02 17,110.02
Preference Shares 1,339.02 1,339.02
Loans 3,488.37 3,48B.37
Trade Payables 106.72 44.74 151.47
Lease liability 442 .65 27.06 127.59 597.30

* Refer note no, 40

Interest rate risk
The Company has MCLR based borrowing and depending on the interest rate scenario, the
company decides on the mix of fixed rate versus variable rate borrowing,

Interest rate sensitivity
Variable interest rate loans are exposed to interest rate risk, the impact on profit or loss before
tax may be as follows: (% in Lakhs)

Particulats Impact on profit before tax
2022-23 2021-22
Interest rate — increase by 100 basis peints (100 bps) TH.31 159.61
Interest rate = decrease by 100 basis points (100 bps) (76.31) (159.61)

Yy



KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+ March, 2023

31. Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share
capital, securities premium and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the value
of the shares and to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity.
The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and
cash equivalents,

(% in Lakhs)
As at March As at March
Fiaticninzs 31, 2023 31, 2022

Net Debt

A) Borrowings and Other Current Financial Liabilities 23,738.12 21,937.41
B) Cash and Cash Equivalent 23.59 69,10
Total - (A-B) 23,714.53 21,868.31
Equity

C) Equity share capital 4,180.00 4,180.00
D) Other Equity (15,488.72) (13,580.85)
Total {11,308.72) (9,400.85)
Net Debt/Equity Ratio (2.10) {2.323)

32, Financial Instruments by category
The criteria for recognition of financial instruments are explained in significant accounting

policies. The carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as follows:
{¥ in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Amortised

cost FVTOCI FVTPL | Amortised cost | FVTOCI FVTPL
Financial Assets
Mon-Current Finanaial
Azsets-Others ki 415 el
“Trade Receivable 132.61 231.69
-Cash and Cash equivalent 23.59 69,10
-Other Bank Balances 52,99 115.24
Other Financial Asacts -
Others 5527 66,00
Total financial Asset 451.49 0.00 0.00 536.44 0.00 0.00
Financial Liabilitics
Borrowings (Non-Current) 5,373.26 4,B27.39
Lease Liability-Non-Current 151,48 154.65
Trade payable 111.54 151.47
Borrowings (Current) 1,577.46 0.00
Lease Liabality-{Current) 46.73 442 .05
Current Financial Liabilities- 16,787.40 17.110.02
Others
Total financial liabilities 24,057.87 0.00 0.00 22,686.18 0.00 0.00

33. SBEGMENT REFPORTING:
In the opinion of the Management and based on consideration of dominant source and nature of
risks and returns, the company’s activities during the year revolved around single segment
namely, “Compesite Logistics Hub”. Considering the nature of company's business and
operations, there are no separate reportable segments (Business and/or Geographj
accordance with the requirement of Indian Accounting Standard 108.

§ g
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

34. Related Party Disclosures as per Indian Accounting Standard 24
Names of related parties and nature of related party relationships:

i) Parties where control exists
a} Kesar Terminals & Infrastructure Limited - Holding Company

b) Key Management Personnel
Mr. H R Kilachand Non-Executive Chairman

¢) Enterprises/ Entities with Joint Control or Significant Influence over Entity:
Kesar Enterprises Limited
Kesar Corporation Pvt, Ltd.
Indian Commercial Co. Pvt. Ltd.
Kilachand Devchand & Co. Py, Ltd,
India Carat Pvt Lid
Seel Investment Pvt. Lid.
H R Kilachand (HUF)
Harsh Family Trust
Rajnikant Kilachand (HUF)

ii) Parties with whom the transactions were carried out during the Year
a) Key Managerial Personnel under Companies Act, 2013:

Mr. Navlesh Kumar CEO {upto 13.01,2023)

Mr. Debasis Bhattacharya CEQ (w.e.f 13.02.2023)

Mr. V J Doshi Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Mrs, Sarika Singh Company Secretary (C5)

b) Non-Executive/Independent Directors:

Mr. A.5. Ruia Independent Directors [upto 05.09.20223)
Mr. R.8. Loona Independent Directors
Mr. | K. Devgupta Independent Directors (w.ef. 30.09.2022)

Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties and the status of
outstanding balance as on 31 March, 2023:

{Z in Lakhs)
- Particulars Kesar Kesar Terminals & Seel
Enterprises Infrastructure Investments
Limited Limited Pvt. Ltd.
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.91
[1:32)
Long Term Borrowings 1,280.95
taken /Renewed (2,252.24)
-Classified as Loan
Long Term Borrowings taken - 447.35
Classified as Capital Contribution [786.55)
Repayment of Unsecured Loan 200.00
{0.00)
Sale of Fixed Aaset 0.08
{0.00)
Short Term loan received 910,30
(0.00)




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

Particulars Kesar Kesar Terminals & Seel
Entgi-'l_'ﬁ-iggg. Infrqatx_-ucj:i.tre Invent::_nants
Limited Limited Pvt. Ltd.
Short Term loan repaid 410.30
(0.00)
Receipt towards Expression of 1.00
Interest in case of CIRP Process (0.00)
Refund of amount received towards 1.00
Expression of Interest [CIRP Process) (0.00)
Interest Expenses 15.23
(0.00)
(b) Balance outstanding
Long Term Borrowings taken- 4,971.10
Classified as Loan (3,488.37)
Preference shares-Classified as 1,479.61
Borrowings (1,330.02)
Capital Contribution 5.697.51
[3,250.16)
Short Term Loan received 500.00
(0,00}
Interest Outstanding 13.70
(0.00)
Equity Share Capital 4,180.00
(4,180.00)
(Figures in brackets represents previous year)
Details of Director’s Sitting fees Independent and Non-Execulive Directors (¥ in Lakhs)

Name of the Director For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Mr. A. 8. Ruia (upto 05.09.2022) 0.00 2.70
Mr. R. 8. Loona 3:30 2.70
Mr. ]. K. Devgupta (w.e.f. 30.09.2022) 2.10 -
35. Leases
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities {¥ in Lakhs)
Maturity analysis contractual undiscounted cash flows | As on 31st|As on 3l1st
March, 2_023 Mamh,_.ﬂﬂ_z_z
Less than one year 48.86 444.89
One to five years 21222 52,92
More than five years 1,574.49 1587.84
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 1,674.57 2,085.65
Current 46.73 442.65
Non-Current 161.48 154.65
Total Lease liabilities 208.21 597.30




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

Amounts recognised in profit or loss.

(¥ in Lakhs)

36. DEFERRED TAX

Particulars 2022-23 12021-22
Interest on lease liabilities 22.62 66.69
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease 0.00 0.00
liahilities
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets 0.00 0.00
Expenses relating to short-term leases 0.00 0.00
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets,
; 0.00 0.00
excluding short-term leases of low value assets
Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows. (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Teotal cash outflow for leases 457.06 413.79
{¥ in Lakhs)

; As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
Eactichiae 2023 2022

a) Deferred Tax Assets

i)Carried forward Business Losses and Unabsorbed 3,311.97 3,001.60
Depreciation

i) Expenses Allowable on payment basis for Tax 2,250.99 2,172.59
purposes

Total-(a) 5,562.96 5,174.19
b) Deferred Tax Liability

ilmpact of difference between Tax Depreciation & 819.23 801.22
Books Depreciation

ii)Tax impact due to INDAS and lease payments 845.06 832.61
Total-(b) 1,664.29 1,633.83
Net Deferred Tax Assets (a-b) 3,898.67 3,540.36
Deferred Tax Asset/Liability recognised in Books 0.00 0.00

Net Deferred Tax assets of ¥ 3,808.67 Lakhs (T 3,540.36 Lakhs as on 31.03.2022) is not
recognised as there is no reasonable or virtual certainty backed by convincing evidence of

realisation of such assets.

37. INCOME TAX

Since the Company has incurred losses during the year, there is no tax payable for the year. In
view of the above, Tax Recenciliation between tax on profit as per books of account and Tax

Profit is not applicable.

38. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS):

Face Value per Share ({€)

Particulars For the year For the year

ended 31* March | ended 31= March

2023 2022
Basic & Diluted EPS;
a) Net profit attributable to Equity Sharcholders (% in Lakhs) (2,359.12) (3,855.59)
b) Weighted averape number of Equity Shares Outstanding 4,18,00,000 4,18,00,000
(Nos.)
Basic & Diluted EPS () (5.64)
10
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

39. Ratio Analysis

: : % Change | |
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 in the | Reason for variance
ratio
(i) Current Ratio
Current Assets 363.34 515.34 Fuﬁ to ;ﬂpﬂ%mfﬂ% of
o pans under One Time
Current Liabilities 18,942.82 | 18,443.21 Settlement (OTS]
0.02 0.03 (31%)
(ii) Debt-equity ratio
Debt
Borrowing and Other 23,738.12 21,937.41
Current Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 4,180.00 4,180.00
Other Equity (15,488.72) | (13,580.85)
Total (11,308.72) | (9,400.85)
Net debt/Equity Ratio (2.10) (2.33) (10%)
(iii) Debt Service coverage ratio
EBITDA 77.06 (238.90) Due to increase in
Interest & Principal & operating margin
Lease payment 16,414.35 | 17,566.34
0.00 (0.01) [135%)
(iv) Return on Equity Ratio
Net income (2,355.22) | (3,854.09) Due to increase in
Shareholder's Equity (11,308.72) | (9,400.85) accumulated loss
consequent to  loss
0.21 0.41 (49%) during the year
(v] Debtors Turnover
Opening Debtors 231.69 255.58 UI;E to decrease in
Closing Debtors 132.61 231.69 e
Average Debtors 182.15 243.64
Sales 346.81 1,002.12
1.90 4.11 (54%)
{vi) Trade payables turnover ratio
Other Expenses 382.70 1,055.71 Due to decrease in
Averape Trade payables 131.51 171.12 E.:ﬁf;?:e:f g::r;?mlg:er
2.91 6.17 (53%) )
(vii) Net Capital Turnover ratio
Net Sales 346.81 1,002.12 Dl;ﬂ to decrease in
Working Capital (18,665.72) | (17,927.87) RERS
(0.02) (0.06) [67%)
F o z7 g




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

(viii) Net Profit Ratio
Net Profit (2,358.89) | (3,855.59) Dl:f ta dfjﬂfﬂﬁﬁf in
7 sales an OWET
Sales 346.81 1,002.12 prondeinn: -of| Iimmee
cost due to OTS with
(680.17) (384.74) 77% | Banks.
{ix) Return on Capital
Employed
Earnings before Interest Due to decrease in
and Tax (710.46) | (1,030.76) sales
Capital Employed (5,767.73] | (4,406.12)
12.32 23.39 (47%)
40. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:
Fatonlare As at 31% March, |  Asat 31%
2023 March, 2022
{Amount in ¥) {Amount in ¥)
(a) Expenditure in foreign currency 0.00 0.00
(b) Earnings in foreign currency 0.00 0.00

41. a. The Company has incurred substantial losses during the current as well as previous financial
years and the net worth of the Company has completely eroded. Further, the revenues and
turnovers of the Company have not improved or achieved as per management’s expectations, In
view of the above, there may be an impairment in the earrying value of Property Plant and
Equipment situated at Composite Logistics Hub at Powerkheda, Madhya Pradesh. However, the
extent of impairment is not ascertained currently and hence no provision has been made,

b. The company had defaulted in repayment obligations of its outstanding loans, Consequently,
Lenders of the company filed a petition against the company and the Guarantor (i.e. Kesar
Terminals & Infrastructure Ltd {KTIL)) in November 2020 with NCLT - Mumbai under the IBC
2016. Both the petitions were admitted by the NCLT on 17.02.2022 [against KMLL| and on
07.03.2022 [against KTIL]. Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated 07.03.2022 appointed Mr. Prashant
Jain as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) of the company to manage Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (CIRP).

Subsequently, pursuant to the sanction of the One Time Settlement (OTS) by lenders and the
subsequent filing of form 12A by RP for the withdrawal of the CIRP in case of the company, the
NCLT vide its Order dated 19.09.2022 withdrew the CIRF proceedings. The company has made
part payments towards OTS and there are overdues as on 31.03.2023. The company is seeking
more time from lenders for repayment of OTS dues.

The Lenders of KMLL had also filed an Original Application before the Debt Recovery Tribunal
[DRT) — Jabalpur against the Company and its holding company i.e. KTIL. However, since the
CIRP proceedings have been withdrawn pursuant to the order passed by NCLT after sanction of
OTS proposal by the lenders, the DRT will be informed about the same in the next heanng with
the request to keep the proceedings on hold till the completion of OTS.

Further, the holding company has taken its Shareholders approval te enable the proposed
divestment of the equity and preference shares of the company. Subsequently the holding
company (“KTIL") received final offer for sale of equity and/or preference stake of the comp




KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31+ March, 2023

definitive agreements in agreed form, the fulfilment of conditions precedent and necessary
approvals from the regulatory/statutory authorities.

The Management expects improvement in the revenues and business of the Company in future
and successful fulfilment of OTS obligations. In view of the same and proposed divestment of the
equily and preference shares of the company by the heolding company, the company has
prepared financial statements on a ‘going concern’ basis,

42, Interest on Bank term loans have been provided up to 30.06.2022 on the outstanding cumulative
term loan balances. Pursuant to the sanction of the OTS proposal by the lenders, interest on
bank term loans have been provided on the OTS amount based on the OTS sanctioned terms
w.ef 01.07.2022, The company has made part payments and there are overdues as on
31.03.2023. The company is seeking more time from lenders for repayment of OTS dues.
Further, the effect of the OTS waiver on borrowings and interest outstanding will be accounted
as and when repayment obligations under the OTS are fulfilled by the Company.

43. The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom amount was payable and outstanding for
more than stipulated period (as per the terms & conditions of the orders) are as under: -

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st | Asat 31st

March, March, 2022

2023

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 1.78 20.85
unpaid to any supplier.
The amount of Principal and interest paid beyond the appointed 11.41 9.55
day
The amount of interest due and payable on delayed payments g o
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. 8:20 G2
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in 0.00 0.00
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise.

This disclosure is on the basis of information available with the Company regarding the status of
Suppliers as defined under the "The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Act, 2006."

44, Capital Work in Progress includes
(¥ in Lalkhs])

Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2023 2022
Building-Railways Warehousing 52567 525.67
Truck Parking Area 0.53 .53
Other Preoperative Expenses 2.72 22
Total 537.92 537.92

—
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KESAR MULTIMODAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

45. During the financial year, the Company has incurred a Cash Loss of ¥ 1,064.94 Lakhs (Previous
yvear ¥ 2,515.49 Lakhs).

46. The balances in respect of Trade receivables, Trade Payables, Borrowings, Loan and advances and
security deposits are subject to confirmation and consequential reconciliation if any.

47. ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION

a. Loans and advances to promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Related Parties
The Company has not given any loans and advances to promoters, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Related Parties.

b. Registration of Charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period.

c. Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section
2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Lavers) Rules, 2017 for the
financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

d. Undisclosed Income
There are no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the yvear in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961).

e. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the
financial year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

f. Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution

or other lender.

g. Fraud Reporting
The Company has not reported any fraud during the year ended March 31, 2023, and March

31, 2022,

h. Relationship with Struck off companies.
The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248

of Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the year.

i. Details of Benami Property held.
No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the
rules made thereunder.
8
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49. Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary.
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